

**DELTA BOOSTER CLUB
BY-LAWS
November 2009**

ARTICLE 1: Organization

- A. The name of this organization is the Delta Booster Club.
- B. The Delta Booster Club is a local, independently organized unit.

ARTICLE 2: Purpose

- A. To support and promote all extra-curricular activities (M.S.H.S.A.A. sanctioned) at the Delta Junior and Senior High School.
- B. To foster goodwill and a closer relationship between parents, students and the school.
- C. To raise funds to assist all extra curricular programs.

ARTICLE 3: Membership

- A. Membership in this organization shall be open to all who are not students in the Delta Public Schools and who have paid their annual dues.
- B. The organization shall conduct annual membership drives. Annual dues shall be \$10 for individuals or \$15 for couples.
- C. Annual dues are payable by September 30 of each year.
- D. Only members who are in good standing shall be eligible to participate in the business meetings or serve on any elective or appointive position within the organization.

ARTICLE 4: Meetings

- A. The regular meetings of the membership shall be held in September, November, February, and April. Specific times and dates will be determined by the Executive Committee and disseminated through the school and by phone committee.
- B. Special meetings of the membership may be called by the President of the organization.
- C. The Executive Committee will meet as deemed necessary by such committee.
- D. A minimum of 3 officers must be present to constitute a quorum for any meeting of the Executive Committee. A minimum of 5 members must be present to constitute a quorum for a regular meeting.
- E. The privilege of holding office, introducing motions, debating and voting shall be limited to members of the organization.

ARTICLE 5: Election of Officers

- A. Each officer of this organization shall be an active member in good standing.

- B. The officers of this organization shall include a president, vice-president, secretary, and treasurer.
- C. Nominations for office shall be made during the April regular meeting.
- D. Election shall be held annually at the September meeting. Election shall be by ballot if more than one nominee for an office exists.
- E. The office of President and Treasurer may not be held by spouses or members of the same household.

ARTICLE 6: Duties of Officers

- A. President: The president shall preside at all meetings of the organization and of the Executive Committee and shall be a member ex-officio of all committees. The president shall appoint all committee chairpersons and all special committees.
- B. Vice-President: The vice-president shall assist the president and perform duties of the president in absence of that officer.
- C. Secretary: The secretary shall record the minutes of all meetings of the organization and of the Executive Committee. The secretary shall also be responsible for maintaining a membership list and coordinating all correspondence for the organization.
- D. Treasurer: The treasurer shall receive all monies of the organization and keep accurate records of receipts and expenditures. The treasurer shall present a statement of account at every regular meeting of the organization and at all other times when requested by the Executive Committee.
- E. Athletic Director: The athletic director of the Delta R-5 Schools shall serve as an ex-officio member of the organization and the Executive Committee. The athletic director shall provide information concerning the needs of all extra-curricular programs in the Delta R-5 Schools.

ARTICLE 7: Executive Committee

- A. The Executive Committee shall consist of the current officers of the organization and the athletic director of the Delta R-5 Schools.
- B. The duties of the Executive Committee shall be to transact necessary business between organization meetings and such other business as may be referred to it by the organization.
- C. Special meetings of the Executive Committee may be called by the President or by a majority of the Executive Committee.
- D. The Executive Committee has the authority to change the time and date of regularly scheduled meetings of the organization.

ARTICLE 8: Committees

- A. All committees of this organization shall be appointed by the President and their term shall be for a period of one year or less if terminated by the action of the Executive Committees.

ARTICLE 9: Amendments

- A. These by-laws may be amended at any regular meeting of the organization by a two-thirds vote of the members present.
- B. Amendments to the by-laws become effective upon approval by the organization.

ARTICLE 10: Relationship with School

- A. The Delta Booster Club shall operate in full support of the school administration. At no time should the booster club make recommendations or become directly involved in the day to day operation of the school program.